
 

 

 
 
 
 

Charity Trustee Sub-
Committee 
 
Tuesday 25 October 2022 at 2.00 pm 
 
To be held in the Town Hall, 
Pinstone Street, Sheffield, S1 2HH 
 
The Press and Public are Welcome to Attend 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Membership 
  

Councillor Bryan Lodge  
Councillor Richard Williams  
Councillor Douglas Johnson  
Councillor Julie Grocutt  
Councillor Mick Rooney  
 

 
 

Public Document Pack



 

 

 

PUBLIC ACCESS TO THE MEETING 
 
Meetings of the Charitable Trusts Sub-Committee are chaired by Councillor Bryan 
Lodge. 
 
A copy of the agenda and reports is available on the Council’s website at 
www.sheffield.gov.uk . You may not be allowed to see some reports because they 
contain confidential information. These items are usually marked * on the agenda. 
Members of the public have the right to ask questions or submit petitions to 
Charitable Trusts Sub-Committee meetings and recording is allowed under the 
direction of the Chair. Please see the webpage or contact Democratic Services for 
further information regarding public questions and petitions and details of the 
Council’s protocol on audio/visual recording and photography at council meetings.  
 
Charitable Trusts Sub-Committee meetings are normally open to the public but 
sometimes the Committee may have to discuss an item in private. If this happens, 
you will be asked to leave. Any private items are normally left until last on the 
agenda.  
 
Meetings of the Charitable Trusts Sub-Committee have to be held as physical 
meetings. If you would like to attend the meeting, please report to an Attendant in the 
Foyer at the Town Hall where you will be directed to the meeting room.  However, it 
would be appreciated if you could register to attend, in advance of the meeting, by 
emailing committee@sheffield.gov.uk, as this will assist with the management of 
attendance at the meeting. The meeting rooms in the Town Hall have a limited 
capacity. We are unable to guarantee entrance to the meeting room for observers, 
as priority will be given to registered speakers and those that have registered to 
attend.  
 
Alternatively, you can observe the meeting remotely by clicking on the ‘view the 
webcast’ link provided on the meeting page of the website. 
 
If you wish to attend a meeting and ask a question or present a petition, you must 
submit the question/petition in writing by 9.00 a.m. at least 2 clear working days in 
advance of the date of the meeting, by email to the following address: 
committee@sheffield.gov.uk.  
 
In order to ensure safe access and to protect all attendees, you will be 
recommended to wear a face covering (unless you have an exemption) at all times 
within the venue. Please do not attend the meeting if you have COVID-19 symptoms. 
It is also recommended that you undertake a Covid-19 Rapid Lateral Flow Test 
within two days of the meeting.   
 
If you require any further information please email committee@sheffield.gov.uk. 
 

FACILITIES 
 
There are public toilets available, with wheelchair access, on the ground floor of the 
Town Hall. Induction loop facilities are available in meeting rooms. Access for people 
with mobility difficulties can be obtained through the ramp on the side to the main 
Town Hall entrance. 
 

http://www.sheffield.gov.uk/
https://democracy.sheffield.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=659
mailto:committee@sheffield.gov.uk
https://democracy.sheffield.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
mailto:committee@sheffield.gov.uk
mailto:committee@sheffield.gov.uk


 

 

 
CHARITY TRUSTEE SUB-COMMITTEE AGENDA 

25 OCTOBER 2022 
 

Order of Business 
  
1.   Welcome and Housekeeping  
 The Chair to welcome attendees to the meeting and outline 

basic housekeeping and fire safety arrangements. 
 

 

 
2.   Apologies for Absence  
  
3.   Exclusion of Press and Public  
 To identify items where resolutions may be moved to 

exclude the press and public 
 

 

 
4.   Declarations of Interest (Pages 5 - 8) 
 Members to declare any interests they have in the business 

to be considered at the meeting 
 

 

 
5.   Public Questions and Petitions  
 To receive any questions or petitions from members of the 

public 
 

 

 
6.   Rose Garden Café Building, Graves Park Update and 

Next Steps 
(Pages 9 - 26) 

 Report of the Executive Director, Operational Services 
 

 
 
 *(NOTE: Appendix 1 to the report at item 6 in the above 

agenda are not available to the public and press because 
they contain exempt information described in paragraph 3 of 
Schedule12A to the Local Government Act 1972 (as 
amended) 

 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 1 

ADVICE TO MEMBERS ON DECLARING INTERESTS AT MEETINGS 
 
If you are present at a meeting of the Council, of its Policy Committees, or of any 
committee, sub-committee, joint committee, or joint sub-committee of the authority, 
and you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (DPI) relating to any business that 
will be considered at the meeting, you must not:  
 
• participate in any discussion of the business at the meeting, or if you become 

aware of your Disclosable Pecuniary Interest during the meeting, participate 
further in any discussion of the business, or  

• participate in any vote or further vote taken on the matter at the meeting.  

These prohibitions apply to any form of participation, including speaking as a 
member of the public. 

You must: 
 
• leave the room (in accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct) 
• make a verbal declaration of the existence and nature of any DPI at any 

meeting at which you are present at which an item of business which affects or 
relates to the subject matter of that interest is under consideration, at or before 
the consideration of the item of business or as soon as the interest becomes 
apparent. 

• declare it to the meeting and notify the Council’s Monitoring Officer within 28 
days, if the DPI is not already registered. 

 
If you have any of the following pecuniary interests, they are your disclosable 
pecuniary interests under the new national rules. You have a pecuniary interest if 
you, or your spouse or civil partner, have a pecuniary interest.  
 
• Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain, 

which you, or your spouse or civil partner undertakes. 
 

• Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from your 
council or authority) made or provided within the relevant period* in respect of 
any expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a member, or towards 
your election expenses. This includes any payment or financial benefit from a 
trade union within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations 
(Consolidation) Act 1992.  
 
*The relevant period is the 12 months ending on the day when you tell the 
Monitoring Officer about your disclosable pecuniary interests. 

 
• Any contract which is made between you, or your spouse or your civil partner (or 

a body in which you, or your spouse or your civil partner, has a beneficial 
interest) and your council or authority –  
 
- under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be 

executed; and  
- which has not been fully discharged. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



 2 

 
• Any beneficial interest in land which you, or your spouse or your civil partner, 

have and which is within the area of your council or authority. 
 
• Any licence (alone or jointly with others) which you, or your spouse or your civil 

partner, holds to occupy land in the area of your council or authority for a month 
or longer. 
 

• Any tenancy where (to your knowledge) – 
- the landlord is your council or authority; and  
- the tenant is a body in which you, or your spouse or your civil partner, has a 

beneficial interest. 
 
• Any beneficial interest which you, or your spouse or your civil partner has in 

securities of a body where -  
 

(a)  that body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the area of 
your council or authority; and  
 

(b)  either - 
- the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one 

hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or  
- if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total nominal 

value of the shares of any one class in which you, or your spouse or your 
civil partner, has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total 
issued share capital of that class. 

If you attend a meeting at which any item of business is to be considered and you 
are aware that you have a personal interest in the matter which does not amount to 
a DPI, you must make verbal declaration of the existence and nature of that interest 
at or before the consideration of the item of business or as soon as the interest 
becomes apparent. You should leave the room if your continued presence is 
incompatible with the 7 Principles of Public Life (selflessness; integrity; objectivity; 
accountability; openness; honesty; and leadership).  

You have a personal interest where – 

• a decision in relation to that business might reasonably be regarded as affecting 
the well-being or financial standing (including interests in land and easements 
over land) of you or a member of your family or a person or an organisation with 
whom you have a close association to a greater extent than it would affect the 
majority of the Council Tax payers, ratepayers or inhabitants of the ward or 
electoral area for which you have been elected or otherwise of the Authority’s 
administrative area, or 
 

• it relates to or is likely to affect any of the interests that are defined as DPIs but 
are in respect of a member of your family (other than a partner) or a person with 
whom you have a close association. 

 

Page 6



 3 

Guidance on declarations of interest, incorporating regulations published by the 
Government in relation to Disclosable Pecuniary Interests, has been circulated to 
you previously. 
 
You should identify any potential interest you may have relating to business to be 
considered at the meeting. This will help you and anyone that you ask for advice to 
fully consider all the circumstances before deciding what action you should take. 
 
In certain circumstances the Council may grant a dispensation to permit a Member 
to take part in the business of the Authority even if the member has a Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest relating to that business.  

To obtain a dispensation, you must write to the Monitoring Officer at least 48 hours 
before the meeting in question, explaining why a dispensation is sought and 
desirable, and specifying the period of time for which it is sought.  The Monitoring 
Officer may consult with the Independent Person or the Council’s Standards 
Committee in relation to a request for dispensation. 

Further advice can be obtained from David Hollis, Interim Director of Legal and 
Governance by emailing david.hollis@sheffield.gov.uk. 
 
 

Page 7

mailto:david.hollis@sheffield.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



Policy Committee Report                                                        April 2022 

 

 
 

Report to Policy Committee 
 
Author/Lead Officer of Report:  Ruth Bell, Head 
of Parks and Countryside 
 
Tel:  0114 27 34217 

 
Report of: 
 

Ajman Ali, Executive Director – Operational 
Services 

Report to: 
 

Charitable Trusts Subcommittee 

Date of Decision: 
 

25th October 2022 

Subject: Rose Garden Café Building, Graves Park Update 
and Next Steps 
 
 

 
Has an Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) been undertaken? Yes  No x  
 
If YES, what EIA reference number has it been given?   (Insert reference number) 

Has appropriate consultation taken place? Yes x No   
 
Has a Climate Impact Assessment (CIA) been undertaken? Yes  No x  
 
 
Does the report contain confidential or exempt information? Yes x No   
 
If YES, give details as to whether the exemption applies to the full report / part of the 
report and/or appendices and complete below:- 
 
The appendix 1 is not for publication because it contains exempt information under 
Paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended). 
 
 
Purpose of Report: 
 
This report sets out to brief the Trustees of the Graves Park Charity on the current 
position regarding the Rose Garden Café Building (“the Café Building”) following its 
closure on 27th July 2022. It contains an  update as to decisions and actions taken 
to date. It sets out the proposed next steps and seeks approval for those steps to 
be taken alongside a request to approach the Charity Commission regarding the 
potential options for the Café Building.   

  

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



Page 2 of 13 

Recommendations: 
 
Recommendations  

(1) Subject to recommendation 2 below that the sub-committee acting as 
trustees agree that at this time the options proposed in this report in relation 
to the future of the Café Building are the only reasonable options available 
to the trustees acting in the charity’s best interests. 
 

(2) That in all the circumstances before any final decision is made by the 
trustees regarding the future of the Café Building pursuant to clause 10 of 
the Scheme and section 110 of the Charities Act 2011the Charity 
Commission is approached for guidance on the options set out in this report. 
 

(3) That following receipt of the opinion of the Charity Commission and any 
clarification required a further report is brought back to the subcommittee for 
consideration of the future of the Café Building.  
 

 
 
Background Papers: 
(Insert details of any background papers used in the compilation of the report.) 
 

 
 

Lead Officer to complete:- 
 

Finance:  Janinne Scarborough  

Legal:  David Sellars  

Equalities & Consultation:  Louise Nunn  

1 I have consulted the relevant departments 
in respect of any relevant implications 
indicated on the Statutory and Council 
Policy Checklist, and comments have 
been incorporated / additional forms 
completed / EIA completed, where 
required. 

Climate:  Victoria Penman 
 

 Legal, financial/commercial and equalities implications must be included within the report and 
the name of the officer consulted must be included above. 

2 SLB member who approved 
submission: 

Ajman Ali 

3 Committee Chair consulted:  Bryan Lodge 

4 I confirm that all necessary approval has been obtained in respect of the implications indicated 
on the Statutory and Council Policy Checklist and that the report has been approved for 
submission to the Committee by the SLB member indicated at 2.  In addition, any additional 
forms have been completed and signed off as required at 1.  

Page 10



Page 3 of 13 

 Lead Officer Name: 
Ruth Bell 

Job Title:  
Head of Parks and Countryside 
 

 Date:  17th October 2022 

 
  

Page 11



Page 4 of 13 

  
1. PROPOSAL  
  
1.1 Background 
 The Rose Garden Café (Café Building) was closed on 27th July 2022 

following health and safety risks being identified as a result of a 
structural survey report.  
 
Having considered the evidence in the structural reports, there being 
discussion with the structural engineer, the opinion from insurers been 
sought, the time it would take to add a propping solution being 
considered and potential risks to the health and safety of any occupants 
of the Cafe Building, the decision was taken by officers to close the café 
on the 27th July with immediate effect, to ensure the safety of staff and 
members of public whilst further investigations  and discussions could 
take place.  
 
Officers assessed a temporary propping solution to keep the building 
open and discussed the operational implications with the operator of 
the cafe on the 28th July. Whilst propping is possible, officers and café 
representatives agreed at this stage that it was not viable to operate a 
café under these circumstances. 
 
The toilet block that adjoins the Cafe Building was constructed 
separately to the café. This structure has been assessed and 
determined to be unaffected by the issues of the main structure. This 
building therefore remains open. The toilets are accessed via a side 
entrance and are separated from the rest of the site by Heras Fencing. 

  
1.2 History of the Park 
 In 1925 Land purchased by Councillor and Mrs. J.G. Graves was 

presented to the Corporation as a gift to the City of Sheffield, for use as 
a public park. In 1927 an addition was made to the park through the 
construction of the Pavilion (which would later change its name to Rose 
Garden Café). Between 1925 and 1936 the park significantly increased 
in size from 154 to 248 acres. And in 1938 the construction of the Rose 
Garden in front of the Pavilion (later the Rose Garden Café). 
 
Graves Park is Sheffield’s largest park and is a flagship site providing 
recreational and health benefits to a wider range of communities 
across Sheffield. The Park is held in a Charitable Trust with Sheffield 
City Council acting as the sole trustee.  Key facilities at the park include 
the animal farm attraction, two playgrounds, sporting facilities and the 
Rose Garden Café. The café is a well-used facility and provides t 
contributes towards the cost of running, maintaining and improving the 
Park. The facility links through the rose garden to the park’s largest 
playground. There are two active Friends Groups within the park (the 
Friends of Graves Park and the Friends of Woodseats Playground).   

  

Page 12



Page 5 of 13 

1.3 Charitable Status 
 The Graves Park Scheme – Charity Commission Reference (510841) 

(“the Scheme”) 
 
The pursuant to the powers in the Charities Act 1993 the Charity 
Commission  set up the Scheme from the 12th March 2009 to govern 
the charity known as Graves Park (510841) and replaced the former 
trusts of the charity.  
 
The objects of the charity are:- 
 
“The provision and maintenance of a park and recreation ground for 
use by the public with the object of improving their conditions of life.” 
 
“Subject to clause 7 below, the land identified in part 1 of the schedule 
to this scheme must be retained by the trustee for the use of the object 
of the charity.”  
 
At Clause 10 the Scheme provides :- 
 
10. QUESTIONS RELATING TO THE SCHEME  
 
The Commission may decide any question put to it concerning: 
 

(1) The interpretation of this scheme; 
 

(2) The propriety or validity of anything done or intended to be done 
under it.  

The Council is the sole trustee of the Graves Park charity and produce 
audited accounts and submit them to the Charity Commission. No 
annual general meetings are held. When decisions are required related 
to the charity site, they are taken by the relevant elected member-led 
group (currently Charitable Trustees Subcommittee of the Council, 
previously Cooperative Executive and  prior to this Cabinet). 
 

  
1.4 Charity Finances 
 The charity accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis. 

The 2021/22 Accounts are currently being prepared and are not ready 
for sharing with the Committee until later this year post external audit 
review. 
  
 
In 2020/21, total revenue expenditure on charitable activities was 
£475k, £287k (60%) was funded by Sheffield City Council. The 
remaining revenue funding sources largely relate to other income from 
activities such as rents, car parking, and income from the animal farm, 
though it should be noted that most activities at the park during the 
year 2020/21 were curtailed as a result of the pandemic. Individual 

Page 13



Page 6 of 13 

rents are commercially sensitive but the total rental income for the Park 
is detailed in the charity accounts. 
 
 
In addition, a further £261k capital expenditure was incurred, fully 
funded by the Council, which has enhanced the Parks staff welfare 
facilities, and enabled road, path and pitch repairs  
 
Total overall expenditure (both capital and revenue) was therefore 
£736k, funded as follows: 
 
-Sheffield City Council revenue contribution £287k 
-Sheffield City Council Capital contribution £261k 
-Income from other  activities: £177k 
-Friends of/Other: £11k 
 
As the charity is managed and funded by the Council no specific 
charity reserves are deemed to be necessary, except for those 
reserves represented by fixed assets.  

  
1.5 Building Maintenance and Surveys 
 As part of the Council’s rolling condition collection programme to help 

prioritise investment decisions, condition surveys were undertaken at the  
Café Building in October 2018 and July 2022. These were visual surveys 
that detailed the condition of building elements and indicated where 
further survey work might be required. 
 
The condition surveys in 2018 and 2022 undertaken by Rider Levitt 
Bucknall, were produced as part of the Council’s cyclical programme of 
reviews. They identified issues with bowing and distortion of the 
structural frame which could be seen both in the roof structure which is 
sagging and the front elevation which is leaning out. The 2022 survey 
highlights the roof had deteriorated since the 2018 survey due to water 
ingress and the building was classed as poor overall (requiring remedial 
works) and the roof was classed as bad (reached the end of its life). 
 
Extract from Condition Survey July 2022 
The original Rose Garden Cafe has a plain tile roof, which is in poor 
condition with numerous missing and damaged tiles. The timber facias 
are deteriorating and the clock tower requires further investigation and 
restoration. The windows are similarly deteriorating with replacement of 
decayed units required. The timber framed structure forming the Rose 
Garden Cafe has been subject to historic and significant distortion. The 
café has been subject to longstanding water ingress issues.  The water 
ingress has potentially damaged the timber structure. Specialist third-
party specialists should be engaged to inspect the condition of the 
timber structure.  Whilst no evidence of recent instability was apparent, 
prior to recovering the main roof, further investigation required by 
Structural Engineer to ensure all movement is complete. 
 

Page 14



Page 7 of 13 

Separately and unrelated to the rolling condition collection programme, 
the Parks & Countryside Service commissioned Capital Delivery Service 
to undertake a Feasibility Study to explore how the building could be 
improved to support a better café offer. As part of this study, the structure 
of the building was inspected by a SCC structural engineer on the 20th 
June 2022 and a report was issued to the council on the 13th July 2022. 
 
This was a visual inspection of the café which identified blocked drains, 
roof sag to both elevations, that the dormer windows leaning backwards 
both sides, that there were roof leaks in various locations, that the gutters 
were in a poor condition, that the clock tower was leaning backwards, 
and that all the window frames were rotten and the window frames to the 
front elevation were leaning outwards. 
 
Following this appraisal, which raised concerns about the structural 
stability of the building, verbal questions were asked of the structural 
engineer regarding carrying out an inspection of the timber trusses to 
confirm if the building is safe to occupy. From the discussion it was noted 
that an additional roof survey would be difficult to carry out safely without 
closing the café (due to the need to prop each truss and create a 
walkway in the roof space which would itself add weight to a structure) 
and would likely require some renovation to make the areas safe for 
inspection.  It was concluded at this point that an inspection of the roof 
space would be expensive to carry out safely and would only confirm 
what the visual inspection and report had concluded i.e. that the timbers 
are rotten and need replacing which is evidenced by the bowing and 
distortion both in the roof structure which is sagging and the front 
elevation which is leaning out meaning the building was not safe to 
continue to occupy. The structural engineer produced a report on the 3rd 
August which reflected the discussion on the 27th July. 
 
An independent structural survey was carried out on the 4th August 
which confirmed a number of the issues with the structural integrity of 
the building and agreed with the recommendation to close the building 
on safety grounds. 
 
No planned investment works were instructed for the Cafe Building 
following the 2018 survey, but a cyclical condition survey was 
instructed to be carried out in 2022. However, servicing, day to day 
repairs and maintenance were carried out as required.  
 
All survey reports are published on https://www.sheffield.gov.uk/parks-
sport-recreation/rose-garden-cafe-closure  

  
1.6 Current Position 
 The building remains closed. A propping design has been agreed to 

permit safe access to the building. The primary purpose of the propping 
is to permit further detailed survey work to be undertaken to 
understand the extent of the issues, the options available to resolve 
those issues and any costs associated with those resolutions.  

Page 15

https://www.sheffield.gov.uk/parks-sport-recreation/rose-garden-cafe-closure
https://www.sheffield.gov.uk/parks-sport-recreation/rose-garden-cafe-closure


Page 8 of 13 

 
Early conversations have been held with the café operator 
BrewKitchen about their views on operating within the propped 
building. Based entirely on indicative designs they are keen to explore 
the option of operating but further visualisations and site visits once the 
building has been propped will be required to understand whether a 
café operation is feasible. 
 
Given the extent of the survey work that is required it is currently 
suggested that café operations could not recommence before the 
beginning of December.  

  
1.7 Decision Phases 
 There are assumed to be at least three phases to the decision-making 

required around the closure of and structural issues within the Rose 
Garden Café. 
  
This first phase , concerned with the immediate decision regarding any 
replacement refreshment facility within the park. For this decision, 
options were collated, costed and assessed. This decision was an 
officer-based decision (via Executive Director of Operational Services) 
in consultation with the Chairs of the Finance Subcommittee. This 
decision was taken on 10th August 2022. Please note this decision 
may be superseded by the ability to reopen the existing café 
building under the propping.  
 
A secondary phase (which will be interlinked with the third phase) will 
look at the viability of the existing structure, any ongoing safety issues, 
costs and feasibility of options and make recommendations. This 
decision will consider refurbishment or demolition (or any other 
alternatives). This decision will likely be taken by the Charities 
Subcommittee. This briefing is not presenting or reviewing these options 
– that information is being gathered and will be presented at the 
appropriate point. No decisions have been taken on this by anyone 
at this point. 
 
The third phase will look at future options for a café (and / or wider) 
provision within the park. It will include consultation with the local (and 
city) population on potential facilities, funding and opportunities. This 
will be required whatever the outcome of the second phase of 
decisions. This decision will likely be taken by the Charities 
Subcommittee or by the Finance Subcommittee (depending on capital / 
revenue implications). This briefing is not presenting or reviewing these 
options – that information will be gathered and will be presented at the 
appropriate point. No decisions have been taken on this by anyone 
at this point. 

  
1.8 Potential Options 
 A full options appraisal will be undertaken following the complete set of 

surveys being produced setting out any and all issues with the 

Page 16



Page 9 of 13 

building’s structure. It is currently anticipated that the options are likely 
to include: 

1. Do nothing – ensure members of the public are kept safely away 
from the building through secure fencing but make no repairs to 
the building 

2. Structural stabilisation of the existing building (and 
refurbishment)   

3. Demolition of the existing building and provision of a modular 
facility in its place   

4. Demolition of the existing building and provision of a traditional 
build facility in its place  

5. Demolition of the existing building and site clearance only  
 

  
1.9 Charity Commission Guidance  
 Paragraph 10 of the Scheme says as follows: 

 
Questions Relating to the Scheme  
 
The Commission may decide any question put to it concerning:  
 

(1) the interpretation of this scheme; or  
(2) the propriety or validity of anything done or intended to be done 

under it. 
 
Officers consider that in the circumstances it would be prudent to put 
the options set out in this report to the Commission in order to make 
certain that any actions proposed to be undertaken fall within the terms 
of the Scheme. The Charities Act 2011 section 110 also contains  
similar provisions which would be referred to as “belt and braces” for 
the Charity Commission correspondence. 
 
The Charity Commission have recently written to the Trustees of the 
Graves Park Charity regarding the Trust land and the closure of the 
Rose Garden Café Building. The letter is contained at Appendix 2. 

  
  
1.10 Café Operator 
 The café was operated on a commercial basis by Brewkitchen Ltd. At 

the time of closure Brewkitchen Ltd had a Tenancy at Will (“TAW”) to 
run a café within the Café Building. Previously the café was leased to 
Red Holdings Limited for a term up to and including the 31st December 
2021. The lease was contracted out of ss24 to 28 of the Landlord and 
Tenant Act 1954 and so the tenant had no security of tenure after the 
lease ended on 31st December 2021. At that point, as vacant 
possession was not required by the council, Brewkitchen Limited (a 
company associated with Red Holdings) was granted the TAW . The 
terms of the TAW were to be the same as the 2020 lease to Red 
Holdings insofar as the terms were consistent with a TAW (including 
the fact that either party can end the TAW without notice or without a 

Page 17



Page 10 of 13 

reason). Further information regarding the Tenancy at Will is contained 
at Appendix 1 (Confidential).  
 
The Council has been in regular contact with the operator since the 
closure of the café on the basis of working with a Director of the 
company to assess options for a temporary refreshment provision in 
Graves Park. The company was offered the opportunity to run a café 
cart or something similar or take a temporary container space. The 
operator has stated that they wish to understand the results of the 
coming structural surveys and associated H&S assessments before 
making a decision on temporary provision within the park.  

  
2. HOW DOES THIS DECISION CONTRIBUTE ? 
  
2.1 A high-quality café facility within a park setting contributes to the 

customer experience of that park. It permits people to stay longer in 
that outdoor setting, enjoy it in all weathers, has the potential to 
improve the wellbeing of visitors and build a stronger local community 
and neighbourhood.  

  
  
3. HAS THERE BEEN ANY CONSULTATION? 
  
3.1 Details around the closure including all surveys and a link to FOI 

responses, have been issued via the new web page Rose Garden Cafe 
Closure | Sheffield City Council  This page is updated as significant 
developments take place. 
 
There has been a significant online response to the closure of the café 
and that the  Café Building is considered structurally unsafe. This 
includes: 

• A petition supporting a proposal to ‘make the Council repair not 
demolish the Rose Garden Café’  

• A JustGiving page (originally created to raise funds for 
improvements to the Rose Garden Café building)  

• A number of public meetings have been arranged by local 
people around the ‘Save the Rose Garden Café Campaign’ 

• Local Councillors and MPs have been in touch (predominantly to 
the Council’s Parks and Countryside department) regarding the 
closure of the Café Building 

• Local Councillors have reported significant contact from the 
public regarding this matter 

• The Council has been contacted by local media (including The 
Star and BBC Radio Sheffield) 

• The ‘Save the Rose Garden Café Campaign’ and Friends of 
Graves Park have attended local meetings 

There appears to be a mix of views with some focus on the loss of a café 
/ refreshment facility within the park and some focus on the building itself  
and some forming a combination of the two. 
 

Page 18

https://www.sheffield.gov.uk/parks-sport-recreation/rose-garden-cafe-closure
https://www.sheffield.gov.uk/parks-sport-recreation/rose-garden-cafe-closure


Page 11 of 13 

A consultation process is being planned. Early conversations have been 
held with the ‘Save the Rose Garden Café Campaign’ and Friends of 
Graves Park about sharing information and designing questions 
together. The consultation is likely to be multi-stage and will need to 
capture both local resident's views as well as those from across the city 
given Graves Park’s designation as a city attraction. It is vital that the 
views of the broad range of park and café users and other stakeholders 
are captured. 
 
It is recognised that throughout this process we assure people that 
openness and honesty are important to us, and we will be transparent 
in our dealings with this matter and publish as much information on our 
website as possible. 

• The Web page will provide transparency and be used to sign 
post interested parties to relevant information and published 
documents. 

• The Web page information will be grouped under common 
themes, as raised by the public and we will give access to all the 
reports that have been produced in relation to the building 
condition and structural information.   

• Links to related websites and council decisions will also be 
made available. 

  
4. RISK ANALYSIS AND IMPLICATIONS OF THE DECISION 
  
4.1 Equality Implications 
  
4.1.1 There are none at this stage due to the closure of the Café being down 

to structural issues. 
  
4.2 Financial and Commercial Implications 
  
4.2.1 At this stage the financial implications of the issues are not known. 

Future reports will set out this information to allow decisions to be 
taken.  

  
4.3 Legal Implications 
  
4.3.1 The Trustees should at all times act in the best interests of the 

Charity.  
 

Graves Park is held by the Council on a charitable trust which is 
governed by the 2009 Scheme.   

 
The objects of the charity under the Scheme are:- 
“The provision and maintenance of a park and recreation 
ground for use by the public with the object of improving their 
conditions of life.” 

Page 19



Page 12 of 13 

“……. the land identified in part 1 of the schedule to this 
scheme must be retained by the trustee for the use of the 
object of the charity” 

 

Section 6 of the Trusts of Land and Appointment of Trustees Act 
1996 (TLTA) provides: 

 
(1) For the purposes of exercising their functions as trustees, 

the trustees of land have in relation to the land subject to 
the trust all the powers of an absolute owner. 

(6)  The powers conferred by this section shall not be 
exercised in contravention of, or any order made in 
pursuance of, any other enactment or any rule of 
law or equity. 

(7) The reference in subsection (6) to an order 
includes an order of any court or the Charity 
Commission. 

 
 “Land” also includes buildings and therefore the café falls within how 
land can be dealt with under the Scheme or statute. 
 
 At Clause 10 the Scheme provides  

 

10. QUESTIONS RELATING TO THE SCHEME  
The Commission may decide any question put to it concerning: 

(1) The interpretation of this scheme; 
 

(2) The propriety or validity of anything done or intended to be done 
under it. 
 

Section 110 of the Charities Act 2011 also provides that  
(1) The Commission  may, on the written application of any 

charity trustee …, give the applicant its opinion or advice 
in relation to any matter 

(a) Relating to the performance of any duties of the applicant, as 
such a trustee, in relation to the charity concerned, or  

(b) Otherwise relating to the proper administration of the charity. 
(2) A person…who- 

(b)acts in accordance with any opinion or advice given by the 
Commission under subsection (1) is to be treated…as having 
acted in accordance with [the] trust   

 
  
4.4 Climate Implications 
  
4.4.1 There are no climate implications at this stage.  

Page 20



Page 13 of 13 

  
5. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
  
5.1 No alternative options have been considered at this stage as the 

closure of the building was in response to significant potential Health 
and safety issues. Information continues to be gathered in order that 
informed decisions can be made at future stages of the process.  

  
6. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
  
6.1 It is imperative that any decisions taken by the Council as trustees of 

the charity are made in accordance with the Scheme. As stated above 
there is both provision within the Scheme itself under clause 10 and 
pursuant to section 110 of the Charities Act 2011  for trustees to put 
questions to the Charity Commission and more particularly  decide the 
question of what proposals are within or without the terms of the 
Scheme. It is therefore prudent to make those enquiries before the 
trustees make any definite decisions regarding the Café Building 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 22



Document is Restricted

Page 23

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



  

On track to meet your deadline? 

Visit www.gov.uk/charity-commission for help 
on filing your annual return and accounts 

 

t: 0300 066 9197 (General enquiries) 

w: www.gov.uk/charity-commission 

 
 

 

Dear Ms Duckworth 

Graves Park - 510841 
 
We are contacting you as our records indicate you are the designated correspondent for Graves 
Park (‘the Charity’). You should ensure each of the trustees receives a copy of this letter. 
 
The Commission has received concerns relating to land belonging to the charity held on charitable 
trust. The concerns are relating to the trustee’s intentions on whether they plan to have the land 
restored back to parkland or to instead build on the land. We have also become aware of a recent 
news article relating to the Graves Park Rose Garden Café being closed as a safety precaution 
and a campaign set up so the closure of the café does not become permanent.  
 
The Charity Commission (‘the Commission’) assesses concerns on a case-by-case basis against 
its published Risk Framework and its published guidance Complaints about Charities (CC47). Both 
documents are available on our website and explain what types of complaints we will and will not 
take up.   
 
As it is the Commissions role to ensure that charities are accountable, well-run and meet their legal 
obligations, we are contacting the trustees to determine if we have any regulatory concerns. 
 
We would appreciate if the trustees can provide us with the following information: 
 

1. Are the trustees aware of concerns relating to land belonging to the charity and if so, what 
actions have been taken by the trustees in handling these concerns? 

2. What are the trustees plans for the land in question going forward and if the land is held on 
charitable trust, are the trustees plans in accordance with the purposes for which the land 
was given? 

3. Please provide details of how the trustees have managed any concerns raised relating to 
the closure of the Graves Park Rose Garden Café. 

4. How was the Graves Park Rose Garden Café managed and maintained prior to its closure? 

 
Sent by email to: 
 
ruth.bell@sheffield.gov.uk  
 
 

Charity Commission 
PO Box 211 
Bootle 
L20 7YX 
 
T: 03000 66 9197 
 
 
Our ref: LAW/C-036009/RC 
 
Date: 9th September 2022 

Page 25

http://www.gov.uk/charity-commission
http://www.charitycommission.gov.uk/Our_regulatory_activity/Our_approach/Risk_framework.aspx
http://www.charitycommission.gov.uk/Publications/cc47.aspx
mailto:ruth.bell@sheffield.gov.uk


Page 2 of 2 

 

5. Have the trustees reached a decision for the future plans of the Graves Park Rose Garden 
Café? 

6. Does the charity have a complaints policy? If so, please provide a copy of this. 
7. Please provide any further information you consider is relevant to the issues raised.  

 
 
Way forward 
 
The trustees should read and discuss this letter collectively. I look forward to hearing from you by 
Friday 23rd September. If you cannot meet this deadline, please let me know immediately and 
before the deadline expires.   
 
Yours sincerely 
 
 
Laura Wainwright 
Regulatory Compliance – Charity Commission 
 
 

Page 26


	Agenda
	4 Declarations of Interest
	6 Rose Garden Café Building, Graves Park Update and Next Steps
	CONFIDENTIAL Appendix 1
	appendix 2 20220909 - Letter to trustees of Graves Park


